



****UPDATE****

CANAL WINCHESTER CITY COUNCIL

MEETINGS HAVE MOVED!

Canal Winchester City Council meetings will now be held at the new City Hall located at 45 East Waterloo St. The public is invited to attend.

In addition, meetings will continue to be available for live viewing online. The meetings will be hosted online on the City's YouTube page which can be accessed at the link below.

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCN7HrdIn_1l8aTzps80NvuQ

City Council will also continue to accept written public comments prior to a council meeting. To be included on the Council agenda, comments must be received by noon on Monday before the meeting. Comments received after the deadline will be included on the next agenda. To submit a comment to City Council, click the link below.

[Submit a Comment](#)

Canal Winchester

*City Hall
Council Chambers
45 East Waterloo Street
Canal Winchester, OH 43110*



Meeting Agenda

April 17, 2023

6:00 PM

Council Work Session

*Bob Clark - Chair
Laurie Amick
Jill Amos
Steve Buskirk
Chuck Milliken
Patrick Shea
Mike Walker*

A. Call To Order

B. Roll Call

C. Also In Attendance

Mayor Ebert, Matt Peoples, Lucas Haire, Amanda Jackson

D. Reports of City Staff

Bill Sims

E. Request for Council Action

[RES-23-015](#)

Council

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE COMPENSATION FOR THE OFFICE OF MEMBER OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2024 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2025

- Tabled

[RES-23-016](#)

Council

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE COMPENSATION FOR THE OFFICE OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2024 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2025

- Tabled

[RES-23-020](#)

Public Service

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR THE PARTICIPATION IN THE ODOT ROAD SALT CONTRACTS AWARDED IN 2023

- Request to move to full Council

[ORD-23-016](#)

Council

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR THE SUBMISSION OF PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS TO THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER AT THE NOVEMBER 7, 2023 MUNICIPAL ELECTION

- Tabled

F. Old/New Business

[OTH-22-021](#)

Pedestrian Safety

[OTH-22-022](#)

Police Study

G. Adjournment

RESOLUTION NO. 23-015

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE COMPENSATION FOR THE OFFICE OF MEMBER OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2024 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2025

WHEREAS, Section 3.07 of the Charter of the City of Canal Winchester provides that the salaries of all elected officials of Canal Winchester shall be established by ordinance or resolution to be adopted no later than July 1 of each odd-numbered year; and

WHEREAS, Council has deliberated on the question of compensation, including an increase in the level of compensation for Council members for the first time since 2015;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER, STATE OF OHIO:

Section 1: That the salaries of the members of Council be and hereby are set at six thousand, seven hundred ninety dollars (\$6,790.00) per year, effective January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024, and six thousand, nine hundred ninety-four dollars (\$6,994.00) per year, effective January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025, to be paid in monthly installments.

Section 2: That the salary of the President of Council be and hereby is set at seven thousand, four hundred sixty-nine dollars (\$7,469.00) per year, effective January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024, and seven thousand, six hundred ninety-three dollars (\$7,693.00) per year, effective January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025, to be paid in monthly installments.

Section 3: That the salary of the Vice President of Council be and hereby is set at seven thousand, one hundred twenty-nine dollars (\$7,129.00) per year, effective January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024, and seven thousand, three hundred forty-three dollars (\$7,343.00) per year, effective January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025, to be paid in monthly installments.

Section 4: That Council members are eligible to enroll in or opt-out of single coverage in the City's Medical/Hospitalization plan at the same terms, conditions, and requirements as full-time employees of the City.

Section 5: That Council members are eligible to purchase through payroll deduction dental and vision care through the City's plan.

Section 6: That, effective with the first pay period beginning on or after January 1, 2024, the full amount of the statutorily required employee contributions to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) shall be picked up and paid as a fringe benefit by the City of Canal Winchester to the members of Council. The pick-up shall be offset against future salary increases. This "pick up" by the City of Canal Winchester shall be designated as public employee contributions and shall be in lieu of contributions to OPERS by the members of Council. The members of Council subject to this "pick up" shall not have the option of choosing to receive the statutorily required contribution to OPERS directly instead of having it "picked up" by the City of Canal Winchester or of being excluded from the "pick up". The City of Canal Winchester shall, in reporting and making remittance to OPERS, report that the public employees' contribution for the members of Council has been made as provided by the statute. Therefore, contributions, although designated as employee contributions, are employer-paid, and employees do not have the option to receive the contributions directly. All contributions are

paid by the employer directly to the plan. The Finance Director, Clerk of Council, and other employees and officers of the City are authorized to take such actions as are necessary to effectuate this pick-up.

Section 7: That, to the extent that the salary provided for members of Council in Section 1 of this Ordinance would result in an increase of salary for members whose positions are not up for election in the municipal election of 2023, the members' salaries shall continue to be those established by Ordinance 21-023; provided, however, that if the Ohio Ethics Commission opines that such members may receive in-term salary increases, those members shall be eligible for such increase.

Section 8: That this resolution shall take effect at the earliest date provided by law.

DATE PASSED _____

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST _____
CLERK OF COUNCIL

MAYOR

DATE APPROVED _____

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

LEGAL COUNSEL

I hereby certify that the resolution as set forth above was published for a period of not less than fifteen days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than three (3) public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in the Canal Winchester Charter.

Clerk of Council

RESOLUTION NO. 23-016

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE COMPENSATION FOR THE OFFICE OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2024 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2025

WHEREAS, Section 3.07 of the Charter of the City of Canal Winchester provides that the salaries of all elected officials of Canal Winchester shall be established by ordinance or resolution to be adopted no later than July 1 of each odd-numbered year; and

WHEREAS, Council has deliberated on the proposal to create the Administrator position authorized by Section 5.06 of the Charter, and on the level of compensation for the position of Mayor that may be commensurate with creating the Administrator position;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER, STATE OF OHIO:

Section 1: That the salary of the Mayor be and hereby is set at fifty thousand dollars (\$50,000.00) per year, effective January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024, and a salary of fifty-one thousand, five hundred dollars (\$51,500.00) per year, effective January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025, to be paid in biweekly installments on the schedule of salaried employees of the City.

Section 2: That the salary provided for in Section 1 of this Resolution shall be effective only if, prior to July 1, 2023, an ordinance creating the position of Administrator is adopted by Council and takes effect; if such an ordinance does not become effective prior to July 1, 2023, then the salary of the Mayor shall be one hundred three thousand, eight hundred sixty-eight dollars (\$103,868.00) per year, effective January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024, and a salary of one hundred six thousand, nine hundred eighty-four dollars (\$106,984.00) per year, effective January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025, to be paid in biweekly installments on the schedule of salaried employees of the City.

Section 3: That, regardless of the salary established under either Section 1 or Section 2 of this Resolution, the Mayor shall receive the following benefits for the period effective January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2025:

- (a) The Mayor shall be eligible to enroll for single or family coverage in the City's medical/hospitalization plan, dental plan, vision plan, and life insurance benefit plan on the same terms, conditions, and requirements as full-time employees of the City;
- (b) The Mayor shall receive a travel allowance of \$500 per month to compensate for use of his or her personal vehicle in the conduct of City business;
- (c) Effective with the first pay period beginning on or after January 1, 2024, the full amount of the statutorily required employee contributions to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) shall be picked up and paid as a fringe benefit by the City of Canal Winchester to the Mayor. The pick-up shall be offset against future salary increases. This "pick up" by the City of Canal Winchester shall be designated as public employee contributions and shall be in lieu of contributions to OPERS by the Mayor. The Mayor subject to this "pick up" shall not have the option of choosing to receive the statutorily required contribution to OPERS directly instead of having it "picked up" by the City of Canal Winchester or of being excluded from the "pick up". The City of Canal Winchester shall, in reporting and making remittance to OPERS, report that the public employees' contribution for the Mayor has been made as provided by the statute. Therefore, contributions, although

designated as employee contributions, are employer-paid, and employees do not have the option to receive the contributions directly. All contributions are paid by the employer directly to the plan. The Finance Director, Clerk of Council, and other employees and officers of the City are authorized to take such actions as are necessary to effectuate this pick-up.

Section 4: That this resolution shall take effect at the earliest date provided by law.

DATE PASSED _____

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST _____
CLERK OF COUNCIL

MAYOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

DATE APPROVED _____

LEGAL COUNSEL

I hereby certify that the resolution as set forth above was published for a period of not less than fifteen days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than three (3) public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in the Canal Winchester Charter.

Clerk of Council

RESOLUTION NO. 23-020

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR THE PARTICIPATION IN THE ODOT ROAD SALT CONTRACTS AWARDED IN 2023

WHEREAS, the City of Canal Winchester (hereinafter referred to as the “Political Subdivision”) hereby submits this written agreement to participate in the Ohio Department of Transportation’s (ODOT) annual road salt bid in accordance with Ohio Revised Code 5513.01(B) and hereby agrees to all of the following terms and conditions in its participation of the ODOT winter road salt contract:

- a. The Political Subdivision hereby agrees to be bound by all terms and conditions established by ODOT in the road salt contract and acknowledges that upon award of the contract by the Director of ODOT it shall be bound by all such terms and conditions included in the contract; and,
- b. The Political Subdivision hereby acknowledges that upon the Director of ODOT’s signing of the winter road salt contract, it shall effectively form a contract between the awarded salt supplier and the Political Subdivision; and,
- c. The Political Subdivision agrees to be solely responsible for resolving all claims or disputes arising out of its participation in the ODOT road salt contract and agrees to hold ODOT harmless for any claims, actions, expenses, or other damages arising out of the Political Subdivision’s participation in the winter road salt contract; and,
- d. The Political Subdivision’s electronic order for 250 Tons of Sodium Chloride (Road Salt) will be the amount the Political Subdivision agrees to purchase from its awarded salt supplier at the delivered bid price per ton awarded by the Director of ODOT; and,
- e. The Political Subdivision hereby agrees to purchase a minimum of 90% of its electronically submitted salt quantities from its awarded salt supplier during the contract’s effective period; and,
- f. The Political Subdivision hereby agrees to place orders with and directly pay the awarded salt supplier on a net 30 basis for all road salt it receives pursuant to ODOT salt contract; and,
- g. The Political Subdivision acknowledges that should it wish to rescind this participation agreement it will do so by written, emailed request by no later than Monday, May 1st, 2023 by 5:00 p.m. The written, emailed request to rescind this participation agreement must be received by the ODOT Office of Contract Sales, Purchasing Section email: Contracts.Purchasing@dot.ohio.gov by the deadline. The Department, upon receipt, will respond that it has received the request and that it has effectively removed the Political Subdivision’s participation request. Furthermore, it is the sole responsibility of the Political Subdivision to ensure ODOT has received this participation agreement as well as the receipt of any request to rescind this participation agreement. The Department shall not be held responsible or liable for failure to receive a Political Subdivision’s participation agreement and/or a Political Subdivision’s request to rescind its participation agreement.

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Director of Public Service and the Superintendent of Streets, Lands & Buildings that it is in the best interest of the City of Canal Winchester to enter into an agreement with ODOT for the purchase of sodium chloride (road salt).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER, STATE OF OHIO:

SECTION 1. That this participation agreement to purchase 250 Tons of sodium chloride (road salt) from the ODOT road salt contract is hereby approved, funding has been authorized, and the Political Subdivision agrees to the above terms and conditions regarding participation on the ODOT winter salt contract.

SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage.

DATE PASSED _____

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST _____
CLERK OF COUNCIL

MAYOR

DATE APPROVED _____

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

LEGAL COUNSEL

I hereby certify that the resolution as set forth above was published for a period of not less than fifteen days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than three (3) public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in the Canal Winchester Charter.

Clerk of Council

ORDINANCE NO. 23-016

**AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR THE SUBMISSION OF
PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS TO THE ELECTORS OF THE
CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER AT THE NOVEMBER 7, 2023
MUNICIPAL ELECTION**

WHEREAS, the Charter of the Village of Canal Winchester was originally approved on November 7, 1995; and

WHEREAS, amendments to the Charter have been made from time to time, pursuant to Article XI, Section 11.06, the last amendment having been made November 2, 2021; and

WHEREAS, Council has determined that proposed charter amendments providing for a transition of the City's form of government from Strong Mayor-Council to Council-City Manager shall be submitted to the electors of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANAL WINCHESTER, OHIO AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The question of amendment to the City Charter, in the form attached hereto as **Exhibit A**, be submitted as a single ballot question to the qualified electors of the City at the Municipal Election to be held on November 7, 2023 at the regular places and times of voting in the City.

SECTION 2. The ballot for said election shall conform to the election laws of the State of Ohio, and shall: (a) be entitled "City of Canal Winchester Charter Amendment Ballot," and shall be worded as follows: "Shall the Charter of the City of Canal Winchester be amended to change its form of government from Strong Mayor-Council to Council-City Manager, as provided in the attached Charter and such change to be effective January 1, 2028?;" and (b) contain a statement that a majority affirmative vote is necessary for passage and approval of the amendments as proposed herein.

SECTION 3. The Clerk of Council, Law Director, and other officials of the City are hereby authorized and directed to make such arrangements with the Board of Elections of Franklin County as are necessary for giving notice of said election and for placing the question on the ballot, and for printing the text of the proposed amendment for posting at polling places. In the event that either the Board of Elections of Franklin County or the Ohio Secretary of State determine that the ballot language must read differently than the language set forth in Section 2 above or that the reference to the proposed amended charter language should change for presentation on the ballot, then the Director of Law, upon approval of the City Council President, may make such changes sufficient to permit the issue to be placed on the November 7, 2023 ballot; provided that the proposed change must be presented upon the ballot as a single ballot issue.

SECTION 4. The Clerk of Council is directed to certify a copy of this Ordinance to the Board of Elections of Franklin County, and to either cause the publication of the full text of the proposed amendment to the Charter as set forth above, once a week for not less than two consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation within the City, with the first publication being at least fifteen days prior to the election, or to mail a copy of the proposed charter amendment to each elector whose name appears upon the poll or registration books of the last regular or general election held within the City, not less than thirty days prior to the election in accordance with Section 9 of Article XVIII, Ohio Constitution and Ohio Revised Code §731.211.

SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the earliest period provided for by law.

DATE PASSED _____

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

ATTEST _____
CLERK OF COUNCIL

MAYOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

DATE APPROVED _____

LEGAL COUNSEL

I hereby certify that the ordinance as set forth above was published for a period of not less than fifteen days after passage by the Council, by posting a copy thereof in not less than three (3) public places in the municipal corporation, as determined by Council and as set forth in the Canal Winchester Charter.

Clerk of Council

0128850.0615530 4861-0878-9594v1

**CHARTER
OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF
CANAL WINCHESTER, OHIO**

EDITOR'S NOTE: The Charter was readopted by the electors at an election on November 2, 2010. A date appearing in parentheses at the end of a section heading indicates the section was subsequently adopted or amended on the date given.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE

ARTICLE I - NAME; BOUNDARIES; FORM OF GOVERNMENT

- 1.01 Name and Boundary
- 1.02 Form of Government

ARTICLE II - CORPORATE POWERS

- 2.01 Powers Granted
- 2.02 Exercise of Powers
- 2.03 Construction of Powers
- 2.04 Intergovernmental Cooperation

ARTICLE III - COUNCIL

- 3.01 Powers of Council
- 3.02 Composition, Term and Qualifications
- 3.03 President - Vice President
- 3.04 Clerk of Council
- 3.05 Council Meetings
- 3.06 Council Organization and Rules
- 3.07 Salaries of Elected Officials
- 3.08 Council Vacancies

ARTICLE IV - LEGISLATIVE PROCEDURE

- 4.01 Form of Action by Council
- 4.02 Introduction of Ordinances and Resolutions
- 4.03 Form of Ordinances and Resolutions
- 4.04 Reading Ordinances and Resolutions
- 4.05 Vote Required For Passage
- 4.06 Content of Emergency Legislation
- 4.07 Effective Date of Legislation
- 4.08 Authentication
- 4.09 Recording Legislation
- 4.10 Amendment
- 4.11 Zoning Measures
- 4.12 Adoption of Technical Codes

- 4.13 Codification
- 4.14 Publication of Ordinances and Resolutions

ARTICLE V – MAYORCITY MANAGER

- 5.01 ~~Election~~ Appointment
- 5.02 Qualifications
- 5.03 Vacancy, Temporary Absence or Disability
- 5.04 Powers, Functions and Duties of the Mayor
- ~~5.05 Mayors Veto Power~~
- ~~5.06 Administrator~~

ARTICLE VI - ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENTS

- 6.01 Power of Council Relative to Police and Fire
- 6.02 Legal Services
- 6.03 Department of Development
- 6.04 Finance Director
- 6.05 Department of Public Service
- 6.06 Other Departments
- 6.07 Acting Department and Division Heads

ARTICLE VII - BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

- 7.01 Planning and Zoning Commission
- 7.02 Intentionally Omitted
- 7.03 Other Boards and Commissions
- 7.04 Merit System
- 7.05 Intentionally Omitted
- 7.06 Charter Review Commission
- 7.07 Organization, Vacancies

ARTICLE VIII - FINANCE, TAXATION AND DEBT

- 8.01 General
- 8.02 Contracting Powers and Procedures

ARTICLE IX - NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS

- 9.01 Nominations
- 9.02 Regular Municipal Elections
- 9.03 Special Elections
- 9.04 Conduct of Elections

ARTICLE X - INITIATIVE, REFERENDUM AND RECALL

- 10.01 Initiative and Referendum
- 10.02 Recall

ARTICLE XI - GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 11.01 Removal of Officials
- 11.02 Conflicts of Interest, Ethics, Campaign Financing
- 11.03 Succession
- 11.04 Effect of Charter on Existing Laws and Rights

Charter of the City of Canal Winchester

3

- 11.05 Retirement System - Health District
- 11.06 Amendment of Charter
- 11.07 Effect of Partial Invalidity

ARTICLE XII - TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

- 12.01 Effective Date of Charter
- 12.02 Effective Date of 2010 Amendments to Charter.
- 12.03 Effective Date of 2023 Amendments to Charter.

CERTIFICATE

**CHARTER
OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF
CANAL WINCHESTER, OHIO**

PREAMBLE

In order that we may have the benefits of municipal home rule and exercise all of the powers of local self-government conferred under the Constitution and Statutes of the State of Ohio, and to preserve the traditional and historic values of our Community, We, the citizens of the Municipality of Canal Winchester, Ohio, do hereby adopt this Charter for our municipality.

**ARTICLE I
NAME; BOUNDARIES; FORM OF GOVERNMENT**

1.01 Name and Boundary.

The municipal corporation existing as the Village of Canal Winchester under the general statutes of the State of Ohio shall continue to be a body politic and corporate and shall be named the City of Canal Winchester. The City of Canal Winchester shall have the same boundaries that exist on the effective date of this Charter, with power and authority to change its boundaries and annex territory in the manner authorized by the laws of Ohio. As used in this Charter, "Canal Winchester" shall mean the City of Canal Winchester.

1.02 Form of Government.

The city government provided for by this Charter shall be known as the "Strong Mayor-Council Plan" until January 1, 2028, and thereafter shall be known as the "Council-Manager Plan."

**ARTICLE II
CORPORATE POWERS**

2.01 Powers Granted.

Canal Winchester shall have all the powers that may now or hereafter lawfully be possessed or exercised by municipal corporations under the Constitution and laws of Ohio. Title to all real property shall be taken in the name of the municipality.

2.02 Exercise of Powers.

All powers shall be exercised in the manner prescribed in this Charter, or if not so prescribed, in the manner provided by ordinance or resolution of Council. When not prescribed in this Charter or by ordinance or resolution, then the powers shall be exercised in the manner provided by the laws of Ohio until Council provides a different manner of exercising the powers.

2.03 Construction of Powers.

The powers of Canal Winchester under this Charter shall be construed liberally in favor of the municipality, and the specific mention of particular powers in the Charter shall not be

construed as limiting in any way the general powers stated in this Article.

2.04 Intergovernmental Cooperation.

(A) In carrying out any lawful function or power of the municipality, the Council may, by a majority vote of its members, authorize the execution of contracts or in any other manner provide for cooperation or joint action, between Canal Winchester and:

- (1) Political Subdivisions, special districts, instrumentalities, or other units of government of the State of Ohio or other states.
- (2) The State of Ohio, its officers, departments, divisions, instrumentalities or other units or agencies.
- (3) Other states, their officers, departments, divisions, instrumentalities, or other units or agencies.
- (4) The federal government, its officers, departments, divisions, instrumentalities or other units or agencies.
- (5) Councils of governments or other instrumentalities consisting of other political subdivisions, special districts, instrumentalities or other governmental units or agencies allowed under the laws of Ohio, other states or the federal government.
- (6) Persons, corporations whether for profit or non-profit, firms and other entities; unless such contracts, cooperation or joint actions are prohibited by the Constitution of the State of Ohio.

(B) The powers granted by this section shall be liberally construed to authorize intergovernmental cooperation, but shall not authorize the avoidance of the provisions of this Charter concerning taxation or initiative or referendum.

**ARTICLE III
COUNCIL**

3.01 Powers of Council.

(A) All ~~legislative powers of the City permitted by this Charter, the Constitution and laws of the State of Ohio~~ power of Canal Winchester shall be vested in the Council, ~~except as otherwise provided by this Charter and the Constitution of the State of Ohio.~~ Without limitation of the foregoing, the Council shall have and possess the following powers:

- (1) The power to levy taxes and assessments and incur debts subject to the limitations imposed thereon by this Charter and the Constitution of Ohio.
- (2) The power to adopt and to provide for the enforcement of local police, sanitary and other similar regulations as are not in conflict with the general laws.
- (3) The power to provide for the exercise of all powers of local self-government granted to the Municipality by the Constitution of the State of Ohio in a manner ~~not in~~ consistent with this Charter or the Constitution of the State of Ohio.
- (4) The power, by ordinance or resolution, to establish or authorize the

number of officers and employees in the various offices, departments, divisions, bureaus, boards and commissions of Canal Winchester, ~~including but not limited to administrative assistants to the Mayor,~~ and to establish or authorize the establishment of the rate of their compensation, hours of work, and to provide such other fringe benefits and conditions of employment as deemed proper by the Council.

(5) The power to require such bonds as in the opinion of the Council are necessary for the faithful discharge of the duties of the officers and employees of Canal Winchester. The premium for said bonds shall be paid by Canal Winchester.

(6) The arrangements currently existing for police and fire services shall continue under this Charter; however the Council is vested with the power to determine from time to time whether police, fire, utility or other services shall be provided pursuant to contracts with other qualified providers of services or whether any of the Departments of Public Service, Police or Fire shall be created.

(7) The power to establish, by ordinance or resolution, the rates or charges made of consumers of all municipal utilities and services.

(8) The power to acquire and to sell or otherwise convey interests in real property; and to lease, as lessor or lessee, or otherwise grant or receive interests in real property.

(9) The power to provide for an independent audit of the accounts and records of Canal Winchester, which may be in addition to audits by state offices and agencies as may be required under the general laws of Ohio.

(10) The power to ~~require the Mayor, department heads, and Boards and Commissions to provide information and reports to the Council; conduct inquiries and investigations regarding the affairs of the City and the conduct of any City department, office, or agency and for this purpose subpoena witnesses, administer oaths, take testimony, and require the production of all materials not privileged that are relevant to the subject matter involved.~~

(11) Except for the purpose of inquiries and investigations under subsection (10) above, Council or its individual members shall deal with City employees

~~(12)~~ To exercise all other powers granted to the Council by this Charter and by the Constitution and laws of the State of Ohio.

3.02 Composition, Term and Qualifications.

(A) At the regular municipal election to be held in 1997 and each four years thereafter, four members of Council shall be elected for a four year term of office. At the regular municipal election to be held in 1999 and each four years thereafter, three members of Council shall be elected for a four year term of office. All terms of office of Council members shall commence on the first day of January next following their election.

(B) Members of Council shall be electors of Canal Winchester at the time they file for office and during their term of office. Members of Council shall not hold any other public office or employment with the Municipality during a term, except they may hold office in a political party or be a delegate to a political party convention, serve as a notary public, serve as a member or officer in the military reserve or national guard, serve in any office, position or capacity to represent the municipality or to further intergovernmental cooperation, and may hold any office

permitted by the Charter or the laws of Ohio.

3.03 President-Vice President.

(A) At the first regular meeting of the Council in each even numbered year, the Council shall elect, by a majority vote of its members, one of its members as the President of Council for a two year term of office. The President of Council shall exercise the following powers, duties, and functions:

- ~~(1) (1)~~ To serve as president of the Council and to preside at all meetings of the Council;
- ~~(2) To perform ceremonial duties and functions as necessary;~~
- ~~(3) To exercise all judicial powers and functions granted to mayors of municipal corporations by the laws of the State of Ohio and applicable court rules;~~
- ~~(4) To have authority to appoint a magistrate, at the discretion of the President of Council and with the approval of a majority of Council, to hear and determine prosecutions of criminal cases subject to the laws of the State of Ohio;~~
- ~~(+)(5) To exercise military powers and functions granted to mayors of municipal corporations by the laws of the State of Ohio or the laws of the United States; and~~
- ~~(26)~~ To perform or exercise such other powers, duties and functions as provided by this Charter and the rules of the Council, to the extent such rules of the Council are consistent with this Charter.

(B) At the first regular meeting of the Council in each even numbered year, the Council shall elect, by a majority vote of its members, one of its members as the Vice President of Council for a two year term of office. The Vice President of Council shall serve as the president pro-tempore of the Council. In the event of a vacancy in the office of President of Council, the Vice President of Council shall succeed to the office of President of Council to serve for the remainder of the unexpired term and the Council shall elect, by a majority vote of its members, another of its members to the office of Vice President of Council to serve for the unexpired term of office. In the event of the temporary absence or disability of the President of Council, the Vice President of Council shall exercise all powers, duties and functions of the President of Council.

3.04 Clerk of Council.

The Council shall appoint, by a majority vote of its members, a person to serve as the Clerk of Council. The Clerk of Council shall serve at the pleasure of the Council and may be removed without cause by a majority vote of the members of Council. The Clerk of Council may hold other office or position of employment in the Municipality. The Clerk of Council shall have those powers, duties and functions as are provided in this Charter, by the Rules of Council or by ordinance or resolution. Included in the duties of the Clerk of Council shall be the maintenance of a record of proceedings of the Council and a record of all ordinances and resolutions adopted by the Council. The Clerk of Council shall give notice of regular and special meetings of the Council to its members and to the public as may be provided by this Charter, the Rules of Council or by ordinance or resolution. The Clerk of Council shall be subject to the control of the officers of the Council and shall be responsible for other duties as assigned by Council. The Council may require the Clerk of Council to serve as the secretary of one or more boards and commissions provided for under this Charter. (Amended Nov. 2, 2021).

3.05 Council Meetings.

(A) The Council shall determine, by a majority vote of its members, the frequency, dates and times of regular meetings in order to properly conduct its business, but it shall hold at least one regular meeting in each month.

(B) Special meetings of the Council may be called, for any purpose, by the ~~Mayor~~ President of Council or by any three members of the Council upon at least twenty-four hours' notice to ~~the Mayor and~~ each member of the Council, which notice may be served personally or left at the usual place of residence. Members of the Council ~~and the Mayor~~ who attend special meetings of the Council or who are present at another regular or special meeting where a special meeting is announced by the presiding officer need not receive notice of the special meeting. Members of the Council ~~and the Mayor~~ may waive receipt of notice of a special meeting either prior or subsequent to the meeting.

(C) Any regular or special meeting of the Council may be adjourned or recessed to another time, date or place without giving the notice required in Division (B) of this Section.

(D) All meetings of the Council and of other Boards and Commissions of Canal Winchester shall be held in accordance with the general laws of Ohio pertaining to requirements for open meetings of public bodies.

3.06 Council Organization and Rules.

(A) The Council shall be a continuing body, but shall meet in the Council chamber at its first meeting in January of each year for the purpose of organization.

(B) The Council shall adopt, by majority vote of its members, its own Rules which shall not conflict with this Charter and which shall remain in effect until amended, changed or repealed by a majority vote of the members of Council. The Rules shall go into immediate effect unless a later date is specified, and shall not be subject to initiative or referendum. The Rules of Council shall provide for the number, composition and manner of appointment of committees of Council, and such other matters as Council shall determine to be necessary for the proper functioning and government of Council. (Amended Nov. 2, 2021).

3.07 Salaries of Elected Officials.

The salaries of all elected officials of Canal Winchester shall be established by Council by ordinance or resolution to be adopted no later than July 1, of each odd numbered year commencing in the year 1997. The salaries so established shall be effective for a two year period beginning January 1, of the year immediately following the adoption of the ordinance or resolution establishing them and shall apply to all elected officials whether they are beginning their terms or are in mid-term. In the event Council shall fail to establish salaries as required in this Section, the salaries in effect for the prior two year period shall remain in effect until changed in accordance with this Section.

3.08 Council Vacancies.

(A) A vacancy in the Council shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining members of the Council. If the vacancy occurs subsequent to fifteen days before the date when candidates for the office of Council member must file their nominating petitions or if two years or less remain in the term of the incumbent who created the vacancy, the person elected by the Council shall serve for the unexpired term. If the vacancy occurs at least fifteen days prior to the date when candidates for the office of Council member must file their nominating petitions and more than two years remain in the term of the incumbent who created the vacancy, the person elected by the Council shall serve until a successor is elected at the next regular municipal election for the remainder of the unexpired term. The person elected for the unexpired term at the next regular municipal election shall take office on the first day of January following the election.

(B) If the Council shall fail to elect a person to fill a vacancy in the Council under Division (A) of this Section within thirty days after the occurrence of the vacancy, its power to do so shall lapse and the ~~Mayor-President of Council~~ shall appoint a person to serve for the time as provided in Division (A) of this Section. (Amended Nov. 2, 2021).

ARTICLE IV LEGISLATIVE PROCEDURE

4.01 Form of Action by Council.

Action by Council shall be by ordinance, resolution or motion. Motion shall be used to conduct the business of Council, in procedural matters, for elections conducted among and appointments made by Council members, to provide directions to and to make requests of administrative officers and employees and Members of Boards and Commissions, and as otherwise provided in this Charter. All other action shall be taken by ordinance or resolution. No action of Council shall be invalidated merely because the form thereof fails to comply with the provisions of this Section.

4.02 Introduction of Ordinances and Resolutions.

Any member of Council may introduce any ordinance or resolution, at a regular or special meeting, which shall be in written or printed form and shall contain a concise title.

4.03 Form of Ordinances and Resolutions.

(A) The form and style of ordinances and resolutions shall be determined by the Rules of Council.

(B) Each ordinance or resolution shall contain only one subject, which shall be expressed in its title; provided that appropriation ordinances may contain the various subjects, accounts and amounts for which monies are appropriated, and that ordinances and resolutions which are codified or re-codified are not subject to the limitation of containing one subject.

4.04 Reading Ordinances and Resolutions.

Each ordinance shall be read by title only on three separate days, unless this requirement is dispensed with by a vote of at least two-thirds of the members of the Council.

Each resolution shall be read once by title only and may be voted on the day of the reading.

4.05 Vote Required For Passage.

The vote on the question of passage of each ordinance, resolution and motion shall be taken by a roll call of members to be entered on the Journal, or other record of proceedings of the Council, and none shall be passed without concurrence of a majority of the members of Council. Each emergency ordinance shall require the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the members of Council for its enactment. If an emergency ordinance shall fail to receive the required two-thirds affirmative vote, but receives the necessary majority for passage as non-emergency legislation, it shall become effective as non-emergency legislation.

4.06 Content of Emergency Legislation.

Each emergency ordinance shall determine that the ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, safety or welfare, and shall contain a statement of the necessity for the emergency.

4.07 Effective Date of Legislation.

(A) The following ordinances shall take effect upon passage unless a later time is specified therein:

- (1) Appropriation of money.
- (2) An annual tax levy for current expenses.
- (3) Improvements petitioned for by owners of the requisite majority of the front footage or of the area of the property benefited and to be assessed.
- (4) Submission of any question to the electorate or the determination to proceed with an election.
- (5) Approval of a revision, codification, re-codification, or rearrangement of ordinances.
- (6) Any emergency ordinance.

(B) All other ordinances and resolutions shall go into effect thirty days after their passage by the Council or at such later effective date as set forth by Council in the ordinance.

4.08 Authentication.

Each ordinance and resolution shall be authenticated by the signature of a presiding officer of the Council and the Clerk of Council. The failure or refusal to sign shall not invalidate an otherwise properly enacted ordinance or resolution.

4.09 Recording Legislation.

Each ordinance and resolution shall be recorded in a book or other record prescribed by Council. The Clerk of Council or a duly authorized representative of the Clerk shall, upon request of any person and upon the payment of a fee if established by Council, certify true copies of any ordinance or resolution, which copies shall be admissible as evidence in any court.

4.10 Amendment.

(A) A pending ordinance or resolution may be amended at any time prior to its passage by the Council by a majority vote of the members of the Council present and voting on the amendment, and such amendment shall not require additional readings of the ordinance or resolution.

(B) Any ordinance or resolution, or the codified ordinances or resolutions of Canal Winchester, may be amended by the passage of subsequent ordinances or resolutions that: revise existing sections or parts thereof; enact new or supplemental sections or parts thereto; or repeal existing sections or parts thereof. This Division does not prevent repeals by implication.

4.11 Zoning Measures.

(A) Ordinances establishing, amending, revising, changing or repealing zoning classifications, districts, uses or regulations shall be subject to the provisions of this Charter pertaining to their enactment and matters of initiative or referendum. Except as otherwise provided in this Charter, the Council shall, by ordinance, specify the powers of administrative officials, the relationship between the Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission, and

any additional procedures or process with respect to zoning. The General Laws of Ohio which are not in conflict with this Charter shall be followed until such time as the Council shall determine, by ordinance, the powers of administrative officials, the relationship between the Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission, and any additional procedures or process with respect to zoning.

(B) A concurring vote of at least two-thirds of the membership of Council shall be necessary to pass any zoning ordinance which differs from the written recommendations of the Planning and Zoning Commission, but in no event shall an ordinance or resolution be considered as having passed unless it receives at least a majority vote of the members of Council.

4.12 Adoption of Technical Codes.

(A) Council may, by ordinance, adopt standard ordinances and codes prepared by the State or any department, board or other agency or subdivision of the State, or any standard or model ordinance or code prepared and promulgated by a public or private organization, including but not limited to codes and regulations pertaining to fire, fire hazards, fire prevention, plumbing, heating, electrical, ventilation, air conditioning, refrigeration machinery, state pressure piping, piping, boilers, buildings standards, housing standards, and such other matters as the Council may determine to be appropriate for adoption by reference, by incorporation by reference.

(B) The ordinance adopting any such standard ordinance or code shall make reference to the date and source of such standard ordinance or code without reproducing the same at length in the ordinance. In such cases, publication of the standard ordinance or code shall not be required, but at least two copies of such code shall be kept at all times in the office of the Clerk of Council, or elsewhere at City Hall, and available for reference by interested persons. If the standard ordinance or code is amended after its adoption by reference by the Council, the Council may adopt the amendment or change by incorporation by reference under the same procedure as is established herein for the adoption of the original standard ordinance or code. (Amended Nov. 2, 2021).

4.13 Codification.

By a majority vote of the members of Council, the Council may cause the ordinances and resolutions of Canal Winchester to be revised, codified, re-codified, rearranged, or published in book form, and such action shall become effective immediately upon approval thereof by a majority vote of the members of Council and may contain new matter therein. The Clerk of Council shall cause a notice of such proposed action by the Council to be published one time in a newspaper of circulation in Canal Winchester at least seven days prior to Council's action, and no further publication shall be necessary. A current service supplementing the Municipality's codified ordinances and resolutions shall be maintained in the manner prescribed by the Council.

4.14 Publication of Ordinances and Resolutions.

(A) Ordinances and resolutions shall be published by posting copies thereof in not less than three public places in the municipal corporation, and on the municipal website, for a period of not less than fifteen days after their adoption. The public places for such posting shall be determined by the Council. The Council may, by ordinance or resolution, require that ordinances and resolutions be published by other means either in lieu of or in addition to the posting as required by this Division.

(B) The Clerk of Council shall make and retain a certificate as to the times and places where such postings are done and other means, if any, by which an ordinance or resolution is published; and that certificate shall be prima-facie evidence that the copies were posted and otherwise published as required by Division (A) of this Section. Failure to make or retain the certificate required by this Division shall not invalidate any ordinance or resolution.

(C) Failure to publish by posting or to maintain such posting, or to otherwise publish, as required by Division (A) of this Section shall not invalidate an ordinance or resolution, and in such events, the Clerk of Council may authorize publication by posting, and publication by other means if any such other means have been required pursuant to Division (A) of this Section, at a later date. (Amended Nov. 2, 2021).

ARTICLE V
MAYOR/CITY MANAGER

5.01 ~~Election~~ Appointment.

~~At the regular municipal election to be held in 1999 and each four years thereafter a qualified person shall be elected mayor for a four year term. The term for the Mayor shall commence on the first day of January next following her or his election. Council shall appoint a City Manager, who shall serve as the chief administrative officer of the City, by a majority vote of its members. The tenure of appointment shall be indefinite but shall continue at the pleasure of Council, the affirmative vote of five members of Council being necessary for removal.~~

5.02 Qualifications.

~~The City Manager shall be appointed solely on the basis of executive and administrative qualifications. The person who holds the office of Mayor shall have been an elector of Canal Winchester at the time he or she files for office and during his or her term of office. The Mayor/City Manager shall not hold any other public office or position of employment with Canal Winchester during a term, except he or she may hold office in a political party or be a delegate to a political party convention, serve as a notary public, serve as a member or officer in the military reserve or national guard, serve in any office position or capacity to represent Canal Winchester or to further intergovernmental cooperation, and may hold any office or position of employment permitted by this Charter or the laws of Ohio.~~

5.03 Vacancy, Temporary Absence or Disability.

~~By letter filed annually with the Clerk of Council by January 31, the City Manager shall designate a City employee to exercise the powers and perform the duties of the City Manager during the Manager's absence or disability. Council may revoke such designation at any time and appoint another employee of the City to serve as Acting City Manager. (A) If the office of Mayor shall become vacant, the President of Council shall succeed to the office of Mayor.~~

~~(B) If the Mayor is temporarily absent from Canal Winchester or is temporarily unable to perform the duties of Mayor, the President of Council shall become the Acting Mayor and shall, during the period of absence or disability, perform all the powers, duties and functions of Mayor, except he or she shall not have the power to veto ordinances or resolutions. The Acting Mayor shall continue in his or her capacity as President of Council and as a voting member of the Council during the period of the Mayor's temporary absence or disability.~~

5.04 Powers, Functions and Duties of the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager.

(A) The ~~Mayor~~ City Manager shall be the chief executive, administrative and law enforcement officer of Canal Winchester. He or she shall be responsible for the administration of all municipal affairs placed in the ~~Mayor's~~ City Manager's charge by or under this Charter, the ordinances or resolutions of the Municipality and state laws.

(B) The ~~Mayor~~ City Manager shall have the following powers, duties and functions to:

- (1) Appoint, promote, and, when he or she deems it necessary for the

good of the service, suspend, remove or otherwise discipline all municipal employees and appointive administrative officers, except as otherwise provided by or under this Charter, subject to the powers granted to the Council pursuant to Section 3.01 (A)(4) of this Charter and subject to the provisions of this Charter pertaining to the Merit System.

(2) Direct and supervise the administration of all departments, offices and agencies of Canal Winchester, except as otherwise provided by this Charter.

(3) Attend all Council meetings and shall have the right to take part in discussions but may not vote.

(4) See that all laws, provisions of this Charter and ordinances and resolutions of the Council, subject to enforcement by the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager or subject to his or her direction and supervision, are faithfully

by officers
executed.

(5) Prepare and submit the annual budget and capital program to the Council.

(6) Submit to Council and make available to the public a complete report on the finances and administrative activities of Canal Winchester as of the end of each fiscal year.

(7) Make such other reports as the Council may require concerning the operations of municipal departments, offices, boards, commissions and agencies subject to his or her direction and supervision.

(8) Keep the Council fully advised as to the financial condition and future operating and capital needs of the Municipality and make recommendations to the Council concerning the affairs of Canal Winchester.

(9) Require reports and information of subordinate officers and employees of Canal Winchester as he or she deems necessary in the orderly operation of Canal Winchester, or when requested to do so by the Council or any board or commission of Canal Winchester.

(10) Execute on behalf of Canal Winchester all contracts and agreements, except as otherwise provided in this Charter.

~~(11) Affix to official documents and instruments of Canal Winchester the Mayor's Seal, which shall be the seal of Canal Winchester, but the absence of the seal shall not affect the validity of any such document or instrument.~~

~~(12)~~ Perform such other powers, duties and functions as are conferred or required by this Charter, by any ordinance or resolution of the Council, or by the laws of the State of Ohio.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1"

~~5.05 Mayor's Veto Power.~~

~~(A) Each ordinance or resolution passed by the Council shall be presented to the~~

~~Mayor for his or her approval or rejection. The Mayor shall have ten days after an ordinance or resolution was adopted to veto any ordinance or resolution and to return and file it with the Clerk of Council. The Mayor shall include the date of and reasons for his or her veto in writing addressed to the Council. The Mayor may veto the whole or any part of any ordinance or resolution authorizing the expenditure or appropriation of money. If the Mayor shall neither approve nor veto an ordinance or resolution within the ten day period described herein above, the ordinance or resolution shall take effect in the same manner as if the Mayor had approved it.~~

~~—— (B) — The Council may override the Mayor's veto by motion passed by a two thirds majority at a regular or special meeting of the Council held not sooner than six days nor later than fifteen days after the date of the Mayor's veto. If the Mayor's veto is overridden by the Council, the ordinance or resolution shall take effect in the same manner as if the Mayor had not vetoed the measure.~~

~~—— (C) — The Mayor shall have no authority to veto an ordinance or resolution proposing to amend this Charter or establishing or calling for an election authorized by this Charter, the Constitution or laws of Ohio.~~

5.06 Administrator

~~—— The Council may at the request of the Mayor, by ordinance, create or abolish the Office of the City Administrator (hereinafter referred to as the "Administrator"). The Administrator shall be appointed by the Mayor pursuant to Section 5.04(B)(1) of this Charter to serve at the pleasure of the Mayor and may be removed by the Mayor pursuant to Section 5.04(B)(1) of this Charter without cause. The Administrator shall assist the Mayor in the day to day operation of Canal Winchester and shall perform duties delegated to him or her by the Mayor, including but not limited to awarding contracts in an amount not exceeding the limits as established by the Ohio Revised Code Section 731.141. The Mayor may delegate, modify or revoke, the authority to supervise department and division heads to the Administrator. Until revoked, the delegation or modified delegation shall be effective, but may not exceed the current term of the Mayor or the period the person making the delegation or modified delegation holds the Office of Mayor.~~

~~—— The Administrator shall, in all respects, be subject to the control, direction, and supervision of the Mayor. The Administrator shall not hold any public office, unless authorized by Council, except he or she may hold office in a political party or be a delegate to a political party convention, serve as a member or officer in the military reserve or national guard, serve in any office, position or capacity to further intergovernmental cooperation, and may hold any office, other than Council Member, Director of Law or Director of Finance, as permitted by this Charter and the laws of Ohio. The Administrator may serve as a department head under this Charter.~~

ARTICLE VI ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENTS

6.01 Power of Council Relative to Police and Fire.

(A) Council may, from time to time, provide for fire protection by contract or create the Department of Fire to be headed by a Fire Chief who shall be appointed by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager and subject to control and direction by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager.

(B) Council may, from time to time, provide for police protection by contract or create a Department of Police to be headed by a Police Chief who shall be appointed by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager and subject to control and direction by ~~the Mayor~~the City Manager.

(C) In the exercise of powers granted to the Council under Divisions (A) and (B) of

this Section, the Council shall act by ordinance.

6.02 Legal Services.

(A) Prior to the creation of the office of Director of Law, the Legal Advisor shall be engaged by the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager and confirmed by the Council by a majority vote of the members of Council pursuant to a contract with an individual attorney or law firm. The person or firm serving as Village Solicitor under the village statutory plan of government on the effective date of this Charter shall continue until other arrangements are made by: execution of a contract with any attorney or law firm upon the expiration of any existing contract; or the creation of a Department of Law, pursuant to Division (B) of this Section, to be headed by a Director appointed by the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager.

(B) Upon the creation of a Law Department, by ordinance or resolution passed by Council, the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager shall appoint a Director of Law with the approval of the Council by a majority vote of the Council. The Law Director shall serve at the pleasure of the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager and who may be removed, without cause, by the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager.

(C) The Director of Law or any attorney engaged by the Council, need not be an elector or resident of the Municipality, but shall be an attorney-at-law duly authorized to practice law in the State of Ohio.

(D) The Director of Law or the attorney or law firm engaged, shall be the legal advisor, prosecuting attorney and counsel for the Municipality, and subject to the direction of Council, shall represent the Municipality in all proceedings in Court or before any administrative board or body. The Director of Law or the attorney or law firm engaged shall perform all other powers, duties and functions now or hereafter imposed on Directors of Law under the laws of Ohio; and shall perform other duties as required by this Charter, by ordinance or resolution, or as directed by the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager.

(E) The Council may provide for assistants and special counsel to the Director of Law or the attorney or law firm engaged. All assistants shall be appointed by the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager. The assistants shall be responsible to the Director of Law or the attorney or law firm engaged and when authorized, by the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager, may exercise all or any part of the powers, duties and functions granted to the Director of Law under this Section. Special counsel may be employed by Council to perform powers, duties and functions authorized by and in the manner provided by Council.

(F) In the event of a vacancy in the office of Director of Law, if such office has been created by the Council, a successor shall be appointed by the ~~City Manager~~ Mayor and confirmed by the Council. The ~~Mayor~~ City Manager shall designate a qualified person to serve as Acting Director of Law in the case of the temporary absence or disability of the Director of Law or any other attorney engaged by the Council prior to the creation of the Department of Law.

6.03 Department of Development.

(A) The Department of Development shall be headed by the Director of Development, who shall be appointed by the ~~City Manager~~ Mayor to serve at the pleasure of the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager and may be removed by the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager without cause.

(B) The Director of Development, through the Department of Development, shall be responsible for the administration of building inspections, housing inspections and zoning inspections and all administrative matters pertaining to inspection services including the issuance of permits and the enforcement of building, zoning and housing codes, subject to the provisions set forth in the Municipality's ordinances and resolutions. The Director and the Department of Development shall also work closely with the Planning and Zoning Commission, and shall

administer the Municipality's planning activity not delegated to the Planning and Zoning Commission pursuant to this Charter or ordinances and resolutions of the Municipality. The Director of Development and the Department of Development shall administer and coordinate the Municipality's efforts and activities with respect to economic development within the Municipality. The Director and Department of Development shall have additional powers, functions and duties as provided in this Charter, the ordinances and resolutions of the Council and the laws of Ohio and as directed by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager.

6.04 Finance Director.

(A) The Department of Finance shall be headed by the Director of Finance, who shall be appointed by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager to serve at the pleasure of the ~~Mayor~~City Manager and may be removed by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager without cause.

(B) The Director of Finance shall be qualified by training or experience to carry out the power, duties and functions of the office. The ~~Mayor~~City Manager shall be the sole judge of the qualifications of the Director of Finance. The Director of Finance need not be an elector or resident of the Municipality. The Director of Finance shall not hold any other public office, unless authorized by Council, except he or she may hold office in a political party or be a delegate to a political party convention, serve as a notary public, serve as a member or officer in the military reserve or national guard, serve in any office, position or capacity to further intergovernmental cooperation, and may hold any office permitted by this Charter and the laws of Ohio.

(C) The Director of Finance shall be the chief fiscal officer of the Municipality and shall perform the powers, duties and functions now or hereafter given to City Auditors and Treasurers under the general laws of Ohio to the extent those laws are not in conflict with this Charter. The Director of Finance, in addition to the powers, duties and functions prescribed by this Charter, shall have other powers, duties and functions as required by ordinance or resolution, or as directed by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager. The Director of Finance shall keep the financial records of Canal Winchester, establish the accounting system, financial records and reports used by the offices, departments, divisions, bureaus, boards and commissions of Canal Winchester; assist the ~~Mayor~~City Manager in the preparation and submission of appropriation measures, estimates, budgets, capital programs and other financial matters; provide full and complete information concerning the financial affairs and status of Canal Winchester as requested by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager or Council; and provide full and complete information and assistance concerning the finances or accounting systems or records of any office, department, division, bureau, board or commission of Canal Winchester as requested by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager of Council.

6.05 Department of Public Service.

(A) The Department of Public Service shall be headed by the Director of Public Service, who shall be appointed by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager to serve at the pleasure of the ~~Mayor~~City Manager and may be removed by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager without cause.

(B) The Department of Public Service shall consist of a Division of Water, a Division of Water Reclamation, a Division of Streets, Lands & Buildings, a Division of Urban Forestry, a Division of Storm water, a Division of Parks and such other Divisions or units as created, from time to time, by ordinance or resolution. The Director of Public Service shall direct and control the activities and work of the Department of Public Service with respect to the Municipality's utilities, including but not limited to water and sewer, and the Municipality's street, highways and other public grounds. The Department of Public Service and the Divisions thereof shall have such powers, duties and functions as provided by the Charter, ordinance or resolution and the general laws of Ohio and as directed by the ~~Mayor~~City Manager.

6.06 Other Departments

(A) With respect to municipal functions not otherwise provided for under this Charter, the Council may, by ordinance or resolution, create, combine and abolish other administrative departments.

(B) The heads of any such other departments shall be appointed by the Mayor~~City Manager~~, serve at the pleasure of the Mayor~~City Manager~~ and may be removed by the Mayor~~City Manager~~ without cause.

6.07 Acting Department and Division Heads.

In the event of a vacancy or the temporary absence or disability of the head of any administrative department or division, the Mayor~~City Manager~~ shall appoint an acting head of the department or division until the vacancy is filled or the temporary absence or disability is removed. The acting head may hold another office or position of employment with Canal Winchester, but shall not be a member of Council; further, the City Manager shall not be eligible to serve as acting Director of Finance or acting Director of Law.

ARTICLE VII BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

7.01 Planning and Zoning Commission.

(A) There is hereby created a Planning and Zoning Commission consisting of seven members to be appointed by ~~the Mayor and confirmed by the~~ Council. Members shall serve for overlapping ~~four~~four-year terms of office.

(B) The powers, duties and functions of the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be provided by this Charter and the ordinances and resolutions of Canal Winchester. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall hear all appeals from administrative officers and employees authorized by ordinance or resolution with respect to zoning, platting, subdivision, building and other regulations pertaining to land uses.

7.02 [INTENTIONALLY OMITTED]

7.03 Other Boards and Commissions.

(A) The Council may provide for additional boards and commissions not provided for in this Charter by ordinance or resolution. Members of such additional boards and commissions shall be subject to appointment and removal by Council.

(B) Boards and commissions continued, revised or created pursuant to this section of the Charter shall have those powers, duties and functions as provided by ordinance or resolution.

7.04 Merit System.

(A) [INTENTIONALLY OMITTED]

(B) Within one hundred twenty days after Canal Winchester is declared and proclaimed to be a city, the Council shall adopt ordinances or resolutions providing for a code of personnel practices, which initial measures shall not be subject to referendum or initiative procedures. Pursuant to the procedures established in the code of personnel practices as it may be amended from time to time, all appointments and promotions of employees of the Municipality shall be made according to merit and fitness, to be ascertained, as far as practicable, by competitive examination.

(C) The following offices and employee positions shall be exempted from the requirements of the merit system and shall be in the unclassified service of the City:

- (1) All elected officials;
- (2) The Clerk of Council, the Clerk or Secretary to each Board and Commission, ~~the City Manager~~, the Director of Law, Prosecutor, the Director of Finance, the Director of Development, the Director of Public Service, ~~the Police Chief~~, the Fire Chief, other department heads, and one assistant to each department head, other than police and fire.
- (3) All members of Boards and Commissions.
- (4) Any other offices or positions of employment that the Council shall determine by ordinance or resolution to be exempted from the merit system because of: (a) the confidential nature of their duties to the ~~Mayor~~City Manager, any department head, the Council, or any board or commission; (b) the professional, technical or scientific nature of their duties, or (c) the part-time or voluntary nature of the work or duties.

(D) The code of personnel practices shall include provisions for causes and procedures for the dismissal, suspension and other disciplinary action against employees in the classified service. Except as otherwise provided in this Charter, the ~~Mayor~~City Manager shall appoint, promote, dismiss, suspend and otherwise discipline employees in the classified and unclassified service of Canal Winchester.

(E) There is hereby created a Personnel Board of Review consisting of three electors of Canal Winchester not holding other office, appointment or employment with Canal Winchester, to be appointed by ~~the Mayor subject to confirmation by the Council by a majority vote of the Council for a term of three years, except that of the three members of the Board first appointed, one shall be appointed for a term of one year, one for a term of two years, and one for a term of three years, all commencing the first day of January following their appointment.~~ The Personnel Board of Review shall be organized as provided in Division (E)(1) of this Section and shall have the powers, duties and functions provided in Division (E)(2) of this Section.

(1) The Personnel Board of Review shall designate one of its members as Chairman and the Council by ordinance or resolution may authorize the appointment by said Board of a Clerk who may be a person having other employment with the Municipality.

(2) The Personnel Board of Review shall have the power to hear appeals from administrative determinations made pursuant to the code of personnel practices, as may be authorized by the code, and may have such other powers and duties as may from time to time be given to it by ordinance or resolution of the Council. The Board shall keep a record of its proceedings which shall be open to public inspection and shall conduct its proceedings in accordance with the ordinances and resolutions of Council enacted pursuant to this Charter and the rules and regulations of the Board adopted by it pursuant to authority granted by ordinances or resolutions of the Council.

7.05 [INTENTIONALLY OMITTED]

7.06 Charter Review Commission.

On or before the last day of January in the year 2000 A.D. and each five years thereafter,

the ~~Mayor shall appoint five and the~~ Council shall appoint ~~six~~ eleven members of the Charter Review Commission. The Commission shall submit its findings and recommendations for revisions of the Charter to the Council no later than the last day of December of the year of their appointment. The terms of the members of the Commission shall end on the last day of December of the year of their appointment. The Council may, in its discretion, submit any, all or none of the recommendations of the Commission to the electors in the form of proposed amendments to Canal Winchester's Charter at an election established by the Council. (Amended Nov. 2, 2021).

7.07 Organization, Vacancies.

(A) Unless otherwise provided in this Charter, each of the Municipality's boards and commissions, whether created by this Charter or by ordinance or resolution, shall:

(1) Organize at its first meeting each year by electing a chairman, vice chairman and secretary. The chairman and vice chairman shall be members of the board or commission and the secretary may be elected from within or without the membership of the board or commission. The secretary shall keep an accurate and complete record of the proceedings of the board or commission and shall file a copy of its proceedings with the Clerk of Council for public inspection.

(2) Take action by motion, and a majority vote of the members of the board or commission shall be necessary to take action. A majority of the members shall constitute a quorum. All members of boards and commissions shall be electors of the Municipality.

(3) Adopt rules for calling regular and special meetings, the conduct and government of the board, commission or the Committee, however, the rules shall not conflict with the provisions of this Charter or ordinances and resolutions of the Municipality.

(B) Unless otherwise provided in this Charter, a vacancy during the term of any member of a board or commission created by this Charter or by ordinance or resolution shall be filled for the unexpired term, if any, in the manner authorized for an original appointment.

ARTICLE VIII FINANCE, TAXATION AND DEBT

8.01 General.

The laws of Ohio relating to budgets, appropriations, taxation, debts, bonds, assessments and other fiscal matters of Canal Winchester shall be applicable to Canal Winchester, except as modified by or necessarily inconsistent with the provisions of this Charter, or when provision therefore is made in the Constitution of Ohio, regardless of whether the provision is specific or by way of general language or pursuant to court decision interpreting the Charter or the Constitution of Ohio.

8.02 Contracting Powers and Procedures.

(A) Except as otherwise provided in this Section, the ~~Mayor~~ City Manager, or his ~~or~~ her designee, shall award and execute all contracts on behalf of Canal Winchester.

(B) Council, by ordinance, shall establish a threshold amount, notice provisions and other procedures for competitive bidding. When any contract for the construction of a public improvement or the purchase of equipment, supplies, non-professional services or materials is

estimated to exceed the threshold established by Council, the contract shall be competitively bid unless exempted under 8.02(C). Council shall award a contract to the lowest and best bidder, provided that Council may reject any and all bids in whole or by items. No contract shall be divided to avoid the requirements of competitive bidding.

(C) By a vote of no less than five members, Council may waive the competitive bidding requirement if Council determines that an item is available and can be acquired only from a single source or if Council determines that a waiver of the competitive bidding requirement is in the best interest of the City.

(D) The ~~City Manager~~~~Mayor~~ shall select the project delivery method that in the ~~Mayor's~~~~City Manager's~~ sole discretion is in the best interest of Canal Winchester and may include without limitation design-build, single-prime contracts, or any other method of project delivery.

(E) Notwithstanding any provision of general law, contractors and vendors shall not be entitled to receive interest on funds temporarily retained on a contract pending final acceptance of work performed or goods supplied, nor shall Canal Winchester be required to maintain a separate escrow account from which to pay any contractor or vendor.

(F) Contracts for professional services, including design and engineering contracts, shall not be subject to the competitive bidding requirements of this Section and shall not require authorization by Council if the current operating budget provides sufficient funding for the scope of services in any such contract.

(G) Council shall establish procedures for alterations or modifications of contracts. Modifications or alterations of contracts shall not require competitive bidding.

(H) No contract involving the expenditure of money shall be entered into or authorized by the ~~Mayor~~~~City Manager~~ unless the Director of Finance or designee shall first certify that:

- (1) funds required for the contract are in the City's treasury or in the process of collection; and
- (2) funds have been appropriated by Council and remain unencumbered.

(I) The Director of Finance shall file and record the certification of availability and appropriation of funds in the accounting records of the City and shall furnish a copy to the vendor or contractor. Without the certification, a contractual obligation shall be void and unenforceable against the City unless recognized by Council as a moral obligation. (Amended Nov. 2, 2021).

ARTICLE IX NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS

9.01 Nominations.

Nominations for all elected offices of Canal Winchester shall be made by petition only and no primary shall be held to nominate officers of Canal Winchester. Nominating petitions shall be in the form determined by the election authorities provided under the general laws of Ohio and signed by electors of Canal Winchester equal in number to not less than one percent nor more than three percent of the electors of Canal Winchester voting at the last preceding gubernatorial election.

9.02 Regular Municipal Elections.

The regular municipal elections for all elected offices, and for issues to be presented to the voters, shall be held on dates and at the times fixed by the election laws of Ohio for general statutory plan cities, except that all such officers shall be elected to terms of office as provided in this Charter.

9.03 Special Elections.

The Council may, at any time, order a special election by ordinance or resolution which shall set forth the date and purpose of the election, including but not limited to the referral of pending ordinances and resolutions to the electors for their approval or rejection. Special elections may be held on any date, including but not limited to the dates of general and primary elections in odd or even numbered years.

9.04 Conduct of Elections.

All regular and special elections shall be conducted by the election officials as established under the laws of Ohio. Such elections shall be held in conformity with the provisions of this Charter. Where the Charter is silent, the provisions of the election laws of Ohio shall be followed.

**ARTICLE X
INITIATIVE, REFERENDUM AND RECALL****10.01 Initiative and Referendum.**

Ordinances, resolutions, issues and other measures may be proposed by initiative petition and adopted by election, and ordinances and resolutions adopted by the Council shall be subject to referendum, as provided by the Constitution and laws of Ohio, provided ordinances and resolutions calling elections under this Charter shall not be subject to referendum.

10.02 Recall.

(A) The electors shall have the power to remove from office by a recall election any elected official of Canal Winchester in the manner provided in this Section.

(B) If the elected official shall have served six months of his or her term, an elector or electors of Canal Winchester may serve written notice upon the Clerk of Council of their intent to circulate petitions for the recall of a named elected official or officials. No petitions for the recall of an elected official may be circulated until such written notice of intent is served upon the Clerk of Council. Not later than thirty days after service of such notice of intent on the Clerk of Council, such persons may file, with the Clerk of Council, a petition demanding the removal of an elected official. Separate petitions shall be filed for each elected official sought to be removed by recall. The Clerk shall note thereon the name and address of the person filing the petition and the date of such filing, and deliver to such person a receipt therefore and attach a copy thereof to said petition. Such petition may be circulated in separate parts, but the separate parts shall be bound together and filed as one instrument. Each part shall contain the name and office of the person whose removal is sought. Such petition shall be signed by at least that number of electors which equals fifteen percent in number of the electors voting at the last preceding regular municipal election.

(C) Within ten days after the day on which such petition is filed, the Clerk of Council shall determine whether or not it meets the requirements hereof. If the Clerk of Council shall find the petition insufficient, the Clerk shall promptly certify the particulars in which the petition is insufficient, deliver a copy of the certificate to the person who filed the petition and make a record of such delivery. Such person shall be allowed a period of ten days after the day on which

such delivery was made in which to make the petition sufficient. If the Clerk of Council shall find the petition sufficient, the Clerk shall promptly so certify to Council and shall deliver a copy of such certificate to the person whose removal is sought within five days and make a record of such delivery.

(D) If the person whose removal is sought shall not resign within ten days after the day on which the Clerk's certificate shall have been delivered, Council shall, by ordinance or resolution, fix a day for holding a recall election, not less than thirty days nor more than forty-five days after the date of the Clerk's certification of sufficiency to the Council, and shall cause notice of such recall election to be published on the same day of each week for two consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation in Canal Winchester, and on the City website. At such recall election, this question shall be placed upon the ballot: "Shall (naming the person whose removal is sought) be allowed to continue as (naming the office)?" with the provision on the ballot for voting affirmatively or negatively. In the event a majority of the vote is negative, such person shall be removed, the office shall be vacant, and such vacancy shall be filled as provided in Section 3.08 of this Charter. If the person is not removed at such recall election, no further recall petitions shall be filed against him or her for a period of one year following such election. (Amended Nov. 2, 2021).

**ARTICLE XI
GENERAL PROVISIONS**

11.01 Removal of Officials.

(A) Elected officials and members of Boards and Commissions shall be removed for cause as provided in this Section of the Charter.

~~(B) As used in this Section of the Charter, the "Charging Official" shall mean: the "Mayor" except where the person accused of a grounds for removal is the person holding the office of Mayor; or the "President of Council" where the person sought to be removed for cause holds the office of Mayor.~~

~~———— (C) ——— The Charging Official, if he or she has reason to believe there is probable cause (as such causes are defined in this Section 11.01) for the removal of an elected official or member of a Board or Commission, shall give notice of the alleged cause for removal and the time, date and place of the commencement of hearing for removal, which shall not be earlier than ten days after the service of the notice, to the accused person by personal service, certified mail, or by leaving a copy of such notice at the person's last known place of residence in Canal Winchester. At such time, date and place and at any adjourned meetings, the Council shall hear, provide an opportunity to the accused person to be heard and present defenses, and determine whether the accused person shall be removed from his or her office. The Council shall remove an official for any of the following causes by a two-thirds vote of the members of the Council, provided that if the accused person is a member of Council, such person shall not vote on any matter during the removal procedure and shall not be counted in determining required majorities:~~

(1) Unexcused absences from any four consecutive regular meetings of the Council or the Board or Commission on which such person serves or any six regular or special meetings thereof in any year provided the accused person received notice of special meetings. An absence from a regular or special meeting may be excused by a majority vote of the members of the Council or the Board or Commission on which such person serves at any time, including the excusing of any absence after action is initiated but prior to the commencement of hearings for the person's removal under this Section.

(2) Failure to possess or maintain the qualifications of the office.

(3) A determination that the accused person is guilty of misfeasance, malfeasance or nonfeasance in office.

(D) Upon the removal of an official from office pursuant to this Section, the office of the offending person shall be vacant, subject to any appeal to and review by an appropriate court, and the vacancy shall be filled as provided in this Charter.

(E) The removal of an official or the occurrence of any of the causes permitting the removal shall not invalidate any action of the official or any body, including the Council, in which the member participated. The subsequent removal of a person who fills a vacancy created pursuant to this Section by the reinstatement by a court of a person previously removed by the Council, shall not invalidate any action of the person who filled the vacancy or any body, including the Council, in which such person who filled the vacancy participated.

(F) The process to determine whether grounds for removal from office exist shall be initiated by motion of the Council, and upon adoption of such motion the Council shall instruct the Clerk of Council to provide notice of the same to the elected official, or board or commission member, whose removal is in question. The Council shall be the judge of the qualifications of and of the grounds for removal from office and shall conduct the proceedings relative to removal. The Council shall have the power to subpoena witnesses, administer oaths and require the production of evidence, either on its own motion or through the process of any appropriate court or officer thereof. A person charged with conduct constituting grounds for removal from office shall be entitled to either a ~~private or~~ public hearing on demand, but in any case, a record of the proceedings shall be made and preserved. If a public hearing is demanded, a notice of such hearing shall be published in one or more newspapers of general circulation in Canal Winchester at least one week in advance of the hearing, and in such an event, ~~the Mayor, or other presiding~~ the President of Council or other acting presiding officer of the Council, may reschedule the time, date and place of the hearing set by the ~~Charging Official~~ Clerk of Council to accommodate the publication of the notice. If the hearing is rescheduled, the ~~Mayor~~ President of Council or other acting presiding officer, shall notify the accused person of such fact. Decisions made by the Council under this Section shall be subject to review by the Courts on matters of law and whether the Council acted arbitrarily and without probative evidence to support the grounds for removal.

(G) The Director of Law shall prosecute the removal proceedings before the Council and any review thereof by the Courts. If a person accused is not finally removed, the Municipality shall pay the reasonable costs of the defense of such person and any compensation withheld pending the appeal of the action of the Council.

11.02 Conflicts of Interest, Ethics, Campaign Financing.

—The laws of Ohio pertaining to conflicts of interest, criminal misbehavior, ethics and financial disclosure by municipal officials and employees, and campaign financing and other election practices of candidates for municipal office shall apply under this Charter.

11.03 Succession.

The City of Canal Winchester under this Charter is hereby declared to be the legal successor of the Village of Canal Winchester under the laws of Ohio; and shall have title to all property, real and personal, owned by its predecessor, including all moneys on deposit and all taxes or assessments in process of collection, together with all accounts receivable and rights of action. Canal Winchester shall be liable for all outstanding orders, contracts and debts of its predecessor, and any other obligations for which it may be held liable by any court of competent jurisdiction. All contracts entered into by Canal Winchester or for its benefit prior to the effective

date of this Charter shall continue in full force and effect.

11.04 Effect of Charter on Existing Laws and Rights.

(A) The adoption of this Charter shall not affect any pre-existing rights of Canal Winchester nor any right, liability, pending suit or prosecution, either on behalf of or against Canal Winchester or any officer thereof, nor any franchise granted by Canal Winchester nor pending proceedings for the authorization of public improvements or the levy of assessments therefore. Except as a contrary intent appears in this Charter, all acts of the Council of Canal Winchester including ordinances and resolutions in effect at the date this Charter becomes effective, shall continue in effect until amended or repealed.

(B) No action or proceeding pending against Canal Winchester or an officer thereof shall be abated or affected by the adoption of this Charter. All actions or proceedings shall be prosecuted or defended under the laws in effect at the time they were filed.

11.05 Retirement System - Health District.

The laws of Ohio governing the retirement of officers and employees of Canal Winchester and the organization of health districts shall be applicable under this Charter.

11.06 Amendment of Charter.

This Charter may be amended by the voters as provided by the Constitution of Ohio.

11.07 Effect of Partial Invalidity.

A determination that all or any part of any Article, Section or Division of this Charter is invalid shall not invalidate or impair the force and effect of any other part, except to the extent that the other part is wholly dependent for its operation upon the part declared invalid.

**ARTICLE XII
TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS**

12.01 Effective Date of Charter.

This Charter shall be submitted to the electors of the Municipality at an election to be held November 7, 1995. If approved by a majority of the persons voting, the Charter shall take effect from the date the final result of the election is certified by the election authorities for the purpose of designating, nominating and electing officers of the Municipality and conducting municipal elections. For all other purposes, this Charter shall take effect January 1, 1996.

12.02 Effective Date of 2010 Amendments to Charter.

The amendments to this Charter proposed by Ordinance No. 28-10, adopted on July 19, 2010, if such amendments are approved by a majority of the persons voting at the election held on November 2, 2010, shall take effect thirty (30) days after issuance of a proclamation by the Ohio Secretary of State, pursuant to Section 703.06 of the Revised Code, stating that the population of Canal Winchester is more than five thousand (5000).
(Amended Nov. 2, 2021).

12.03 Effective Date of 2023 Amendments to Charter.

The amendments to this Charter proposed by Ordinance No. _____, adopted on _____, 2023, if such amendments are approved by a majority of the persons voting at the election held November 7, 2023, shall take effect January 1, 2028; provided, however, that if such

amendments are approved by a majority of the persons voting at the election held November 7, 2023, Council shall be authorized to direct the Human Resources Coordinator or other comparable employee of the City to engage the services of a professional search firm to secure qualified candidates for the City Manager position; and Council shall have the authority to direct the Human Resources Coordinator or comparable employee of the City to enter into a contract with the candidate selected by City Council to assume the City Manager's position for transitional purposes; and further provided that the terms of a contract entered into with the selected candidate, during this period of transition, shall not in any way conflict with, or assume the powers and duties of, the Mayor of the City of Canal Winchester, as currently provided in the City's Charter under the Mayor-Council form of government, through the end of the Mayor's term of office expiring at 11:59:59 PM on December 31, 2027; provided further, that the term of any board or commission member appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by Council prior to January 1, 2028, shall continue until its expiration or the incumbent's resignation, death, or removal under the terms of this Charter; and provided further that the employment of any City employee appointed by the Mayor prior to January 1, 2028, shall continue until the employee's resignation, retirement, death, or removal under the terms and conditions of said employee's employment.

0128850.0729714 4877-9593-94184844 9433-7998v1v3

DRAFT